


 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  December 21, 2016 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
Public Works Committee Minutes 

December 21, 2016 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 
I. CALL TO ORDER: 
A regular Public Works Committee Meeting was held on December 21, 2016 at the 
council chambers of the City Hall, Bethel, Alaska. The meeting was called to order at 
6:32 pm by Jennifer Dobson.  
 
II. ROLL CALL: 
Comprising a quorum of the committee, the following were present: Jennifer Dobson, 
Byron Maczynski, Scott Guinn, and Robert Champagne 
 
Excused absence(s): Joseph Klejka  
 
Also Present:  
Public Works Director, Bill Arnold 
Committee Recorder, Pauline Boratko 
 
III. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD: none 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
MOVED BY: Scott Guinn Motion to approve the agenda. 
SECONDED BY: Robert Champagne 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
MOVED BY: Robert Champagne Motion to approve minutes for August 17, 

2016; September 21, 2016; October 19, 
2016; November 16, 2016.  

SECONDED BY: Byron Maczynski 

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
VI. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

 
VII.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  

A. Institutional Corridor Piped Water Supply Project: Project has been rerouted 
adding about 500 for feet of pipe around the Yukon Kuskokwim Health 
Corporation (YKHC), and are currently renegotiating. 

B. Sewer Lagoon- PER (Preliminary Engineering Report) and ER (Environmental 
Report) for Truck Dump site and other options: Still working on contract with 
the engineers, and still negotiating.  

C. Preventative maintenance logs and schedule for City trucks: tabled  



 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  December 21, 2016 

D. Update on boardwalk/trail behind the college to hospital: The grant is good 
for 2 years. The Yukon Kuskokwim Health Corporation has a construction site 
that may interfere with the trail.  

E. Leveling of the Bethel Heights Water Treatment Plant Building: There has 
been 1 check in 5 months and it has moved about 6 inches, which concerns 
the committee.  

F. Recommendation for ordinance modification allowing composting toilets: 
Council Representative Bryon Maczynski reported that this ordinance was not 
approved by council. 

G. 2015 Water Quality Reports and customer concerns: Our water meets 
standards according to Alaska Rural Safe Water. Administration is currently 
looking into a company that could print and mail the water reports instead of 
having the city do it manually.  

VIII.  NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Opening a shop foreman position:  

MOVED BY: Scott Guinn Motion to recommend to council to open a 
vehicles and equipment foreman position  SECONDED BY: Byron Maczynski  

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote 

 
IX. DIRECTOR’S REPORT: Director of Public Works, Bill Arnold shared with the 

committee a capital project list he has come up with addressing all issues with 
the City’s buildings, equipment, and properties which are in need of 
replacement or repairs.   

 
X.       MEMBER COMMENTS: 

Robert Champagne- Welcome Bill.  
Jennifer Dobson- Welcome Aboard Bill. 
Scott Guinn- Welcome Bill. 
Byron Maczynski-Welcome Bill. 

 
XI. ADJOURNMENT: 
MOVED BY: Scott Guinn Motion to adjourn.  
SECONDED BY: Byron Maczynski 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote 

 
With no further business, meeting adjourned at 7:22 pm 
 
APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF _____________, 2016.  
 
 
__________________________    ________________________ 
Pauline R. Boratko      Jennifer Dobson 
Recorder of Minutes      Co-Chair      



 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 18, 2017 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
Public Works Committee Minutes 

January 18, 2017 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: 
Due to the lack of quorum there was no regular meeting held on January 18, 2017. 
 
II. ROLL CALL: 
The following were present: Jennifer Dobson, Scott Guinn and Robert Champagne. 
 
Excused absence(s): Byron Maczynski 
Unexcused absence(s): Joseph Klejka 
 
Also Present:  
Public Works Director, Bill Arnold 
Committee Recorder, Pauline Boratko 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:46 pm due to lack of quorum.  
 
 
APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF _____________, 2017.  
 
 
 
__________________________    ________________________ 
Pauline R. Boratko      Jennifer Dobson 
Recorder of Minutes      Co-Chair     



MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:         02.01.2017 
TO:   Peter Williams, Acting City Manager 
FROM:  Bill Arnold, Public Works Director 
SUBJECT:  Manager’s Report – 
 
Programs/Divisions 
 
Public Works Director:  
Some of the issues we are encountering in CS. 

 The city maintains the two circulating pumps inside of the homes and at 
times they air lock and they fail causing either the water line or the sewer 
line to freeze. 

 The city also maintains the grinder pump in there lift station. 
 There system also has an electric heat trace which is used when there system 

does freeze the city has access to this witch is located in the panel mounted 
to the side of the house. 

 The lift stations are starting to lean and are creating flow issues and causing 
the gravity part of the system to freeze. 

 
Hauled Utilities: For January we have hired a couple new drivers and lost a 
couple drivers, so we are where we were a couple months ago.  
The water drivers, have hauled nearly 3,000,000 gallons of water, the honey boys 
have hauled nearly 2.8 million gallons of sewage and the dumpster driver has 
hauled a record 4500 cubic yards of trash to the dump. 
And at the last few days of the month our new Mack water truck rolled up on it’s 
side.  So, this truck will be out of commission for at least the first week of 
February. We are experiencing higher than normal requests for extra water and 
sewer the last few weeks due to the cold weather. And many people are having 
frozen water pipes and sewer tanks, and have been falling behind on delivery of 
services, I try to make it a rolling situation, but it seems that the same places get 
skipped no matter how I plan. 
 
 
Utility Maintenance:   
 For the month of January, in Bethel Heights we are continuing to flush 
frozen sewer lines and also leveling the sewer lines around the road crossings. The 
road crossings are heaving causing the majority of the frozen sewer lines. In City 
Sub. We are continuing to replace grinder pumps for the lift stations that fail. 



There are a couple residents that their water and/or sewer lines froze due to lack of 
usage, the length of their service lines, and the weather. The water and glycol 
circulating pumps inside the homes are maintained and replaced by the city. 
Property Maintenance: 
For the month of January: Daily duties of clearing pathways to the main 
entryways, Courthouse replacing t8 bulbs and upgrading to L.E.D’S in the main 
hallways and entryways and all lights that are on all night. Holding cells for 
troopers has been cleaned and recoated with new mud and paint. Public works 
building is in the process of getting L.E.D’s installed also, all night-lights have 
been replaced and we are in the process of changing high bay lights with 
replacement L.E.D Bulbs. Boiler inspections were done to priority buildings a few 
code violations will be corrected and sent to the inspector for final approval.  
 
Parks and Recreation: 
Parks and Recreation is closed for the season.  
Road Maintenance: 
Streets and Roads did run two grader when it started to freeze late at the night of 
January 2, when it stated to freezes, from the last thaw we had. The two grader 
were out until it was to frozen to grade anything, this did most of Bethel, and what 
was left we did the next day with gravel or sand so that that the roads would 
freezes smooth.  
 Street and Roads also had to go out at the night of the 19th to plow out snowdrifts, 
during the big storm that were drifting in the subdivisions. We came in earlier on 
the 20th so that that we would have most of the roads plow out before the school 
buses started to run.   
 Streets and Roads has been helping out at the landfill with the 324E excavator at 
the steel pile in compacting and covering it so there will be more room. Also for 
more room for the steel that will be hauled there from the school.  
 Streets and Roads has been digging the ices at both pump house, from the water 
trucks over flowing with water at the fills. We have to use the grader or 420 
backhoe to dig the ices out, and then we would use the loader to haul the ice away. 
This would make it easily for the water truck driver to get under the fills, easily 
and safer.    
 Streets and Roads, had also did the paper work to renew the 5 year water permit 
that I did 5 years ago, but now it up for renewal. This is what we use in our road 
watering truck, for dust control, calcium roads, and to grade the roads when the 
roads are dry.   
 
 
Vehicles and Equipment: : For V&E in January, we have lost another member of 



our repair team. And the rest of the crew is working to get trucks up and running. 
There has seemed to be a parts glitch this month. And a lack of attendance due to 
personal issues away from work for most of the V&E crew.  
 
 
Transit System:  
The last part of January was on the cold side, -30+, and had an impact on the 
buses.  Bus 439 was down for a week with bad brakes, Bus 436 was down with no 
heat, and Bus 438 was down with an electrical problem.  Unfortunately, they were 
all three down at the same time and we had to cancel the bus service for a day and 
half.  The brakes were fixed on Bus 439 and it’s back on the road, Buses 436 and 
438 are still being worked on and should be ready this week.  The Transit System, 
City of Bethel, has/had two Transportation Grants for new buses and I was in 
hopes they could have been ordered this spring and arrive on this coming summer 
barge.  Buses 436 and 438 are old buses, 2008, with lots of “Bethel” miles, 
140,000, and have a limited life left. 
We’ve currently recruited a temporary Part-Time bus drive and when the test 
results come back he’ll be driving the Red Line.  We’ll be starting the Red Line on 
February 1, maybe.  The Red Line will run Tuesday through Saturday, five hours 
per day.  We’ve had several community members ask us to have a Saturday bus 
schedule.  The Red Line serves the City Sub Division /Swimming Pool and it 
might help people to get to and from the swimming pool.   
Bethel Transit System goal for the FY 2017 will be to show a 15-20 percent 
increase in ridership / revenue.  I think we can do this by providing better and 
more dependable / reliable service for our passengers. 
 
Landfill / Recycle Center:  
 Snow removal daily leading to the landfill. Local citizens continue to drop 

off small loads of garbage and wood debris and are charged accordingly. Also 

commercial debris consisting of construction material such as wood, metal. The 

landfill has taken on the dumpster truck department to the landfill department. A 

landline has been hooked up to the landfill to receive calls and send and receive 

fax. The landfill department has taken on the duty of picking up big debris such as 

freezers, couches, mattresses. The dumpster garbage continues to be spread and 

compacted. The metal pile has been moved and crushed and covered with top soil.  

 



Staffing Issues/Concerns/Training:  
 
   
 



Public Works 

Capital Project Lists 

 

Bus Barn 

 Foundation is rotten and needs to be replaced 

 Floor and floor joints needs to be repaired or taken out 

City Hall 

 Roof has needed repairs since 2005 and no action has been taken up to this point 

Senior Center 

 Due to vandalism windows need to be repaired 

 Flooring needs to be replaced 

 Window shutters needs to be installed 

 Some siding needs to be replaced 

Public Works Boilers 

 Due to the age of the boilers they out lived their life span, and are leaking, and need to 

be replaced 

Public Works Transfer Switch 

 When the generator is running power feeds back to the transfer switch and is a major 

hazard, need to be replaced with an automatic transfer switch 

Streets and Roads 

 Removal of pavement on Ptarmigan, replace with gravel 

 1st Road Tundra Ridge removal of pavement, replace with gravel 

 5th Avenue, raise the road and top with gravel 

Piped Water and Sewer  

 Road crossings heaving, they need to be lowered 

 






	PW Committee Agenda Feb 2017 SIGNED PDF
	PW Committee Minutes December 2016-draft
	PW Committee Minutes  01.18.17- no meeting
	Managers Report 2.1.2017
	Public Works Capital Projects FC2018
	bmc  codes

